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prevent an act that is contrary to the 
competition policies of 49 U.S.C. 10101 
or is otherwise anticompetitive, and 
otherwise satisfies the criteria of 49 
U.S.C. 10705 and 11102, as appropriate. 
In making its determination, the Board 
shall take into account all relevant 
factors, including: 

(i) The revenues of the involved 
railroads on the affected traffic via the 
rail routes in question. 

(ii) The efficiency of the rail routes in 
question, including the costs of 
operating via those routes. 

(iii) The rates or compensation 
charged or sought to be charged by the 
railroad or railroads from which 
prescription or establishment is sought. 

(iv) The revenues, following the 
prescription, of the involved railroads 
for the traffic in question via the 
affected route; the costs of the involved 
railroads for that traffic via that route; 
the ratios of those revenues to those 
costs; and all circumstances relevant to 
any difference in those ratios; provided 
that the mere loss of revenue to an 
affected carrier shall not be a basis for 
finding that a prescription or 
establishment is necessary to remedy or 
prevent an act contrary to the 
competitive standards of this section; 
and 

(2) That either: 
(i) The complaining shipper has used 

or would use the through route, through 
rate, or reciprocal switching to meet a 
significant portion of its current or 
future railroad transportation needs 
between the origin and destination; or 

(ii) The complaining carrier has used 
or would use the affected through route, 
through rate, or reciprocal switching for 
a significant amount of traffic. 

(b) Other considerations. (1) The 
Board will not consider product 
competition. 

(2) If a railroad wishes to rely in any 
way on geographic competition, it will 
have the burden of proving the 
existence of effective geographic 
competition by clear and convincing 
evidence. 

(3) When prescription of a through 
route, a through rate, or reciprocal 
switching is necessary to remedy or 
prevent an act contrary to the 
competitive standards of this section, 
the overall revenue inadequacy of the 
defendant railroad(s) will not be a basis 
for denying the prescription. 

(4) Any proceeding under the terms of 
this section will be conducted and 
concluded by the Board on an expedited 
basis.

§ 1144.3 General. 
(a) These rules will govern the Board’s 

adjudication of individual cases 

pending on or after the effective date of 
these rules (October 31, 1985). 

(b) Discovery under these rules is 
governed by the Board’s general rules of 
discovery at 49 CFR part 1114. 

(c) Any Board determinations or 
findings under this part with respect to 
compliance or non-compliance with the 
standards of § 1144.2 shall not be given 
any res judicata or collateral estoppel 
effect in any litigation involving the 
same facts or controversy arising under 
the antitrust laws of the United States.

[FR Doc. 02–24603 Filed 9–27–02; 8:45 am] 
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AGENCY: National Marine Fisheries 
Service (NMFS), National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), 
Commerce.
ACTION: Closure.

SUMMARY: NMFS is prohibiting directed 
fishing for Atka mackerel in the Western 
Aleutian District of the Bering Sea and 
Aleutian Islands management area 
(BSAI). This action is necessary to 
prevent exceeding the 2002 Atka 
mackerel total allowable catch (TAC) in 
this area.
DATES: Effective 1200 hrs, Alaska local 
time (A.l.t.), September 26, 2002, until 
2400 hrs, A.l.t., December 31, 2002.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Mary Furuness, 907–586–7228.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: NMFS 
manages the groundfish fishery in the 
BSAI exclusive economic zone 
according to the Fishery Management 
Plan for the Groundfish Fishery of the 
Bering Sea and Aleutian Islands Area 
(FMP) prepared by the North Pacific 
Fishery Management Council under 
authority of the Magnuson-Stevens 
Fishery Conservation and Management 
Act. Regulations governing fishing by 
U.S. vessels in accordance with the FMP 
appear at subpart H of 50 CFR part 600 
and 50 CFR part 679.

The 2002 Atka mackerel TAC in the 
Western Aleutian District of the BSAI is 
18,223 metric tons (mt) as established 
by an emergency rule implementing 
2002 harvest specifications and 

associated management measures for the 
groundfish fisheries off Alaska (67 FR 
956, January 8, 2002, and 67 FR 34860, 
May 16, 2002).

In accordance with § 679.20(d)(1)(i), 
the Administrator, Alaska Region, 
NMFS (Regional Administrator), has 
determined that the Atka mackerel TAC 
in the Western Aleutian District will be 
reached. Therefore, the Regional 
Administrator is establishing a directed 
fishing allowance of 17,523 mt, and is 
setting aside the remaining 700 mt as 
bycatch to support other anticipated 
groundfish fisheries. In accordance with 
§ 679.20(d)(1)(iii), the Regional 
Administrator finds that this directed 
fishing allowance will soon be reached. 
Consequently, NMFS is prohibiting 
directed fishing for Atka mackerel in the 
Western Aleutian District of the BSAI.

Maximum retainable bycatch amounts 
may be found in the regulations at 
§ 679.20(e) and (f).

Classification

This action responds to the best 
available information recently obtained 
from the fishery. The Assistant 
Administrator for Fisheries, NOAA, 
finds good cause to waive the 
requirement to provide prior notice and 
opportunity for public comment 
pursuant to the authority set forth at 5 
U.S.C. 553(b)(B) as such requirement is 
contrary to the public interest. This 
requirement is contrary to the public 
interest as it would delay the closure of 
the fishery, lead to exceeding the TAC, 
and therefore reduce the public’s ability 
to use and enjoy the fishery resource.

The Assistant Administrator for 
Fisheries, NOAA, also finds good cause 
to waive the 30–day delay in the 
effective date of this action under 5 
U.S.C. 553(d)(3). This finding is based 
upon the reasons provided above for 
waiver of prior notice and opportunity 
for public comment.

This action is required by § 679.20 
and is exempt from review under 
Executive Order 12866.

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.

Dated: September 25, 2002.

Virginia M. Fay,
Acting Director, Office of Sustainable 
Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service.
[FR Doc. 02–24766 Filed 9–25–02; 3:42 pm]
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